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The Old U. S. Post Office in downtown Gainesville was designed to serve as 
the focal and physical terminus of First Street south of University Avenue. The 
three and one-half story yellow brick building rests on a molded, cut granite base with 
water-table. The North facade is dominated by a monumental portico with six limestone 
Corinthian columns resting on low granite pedestals. The portico is richly detailed 
with carved limestone panels on the frieze and a cornice decorated with dentils and 
modillions, which continues around the building above the second 
story fenestration. The portico is capped with a limestone balustrade and flat, 
copper roof. The building has a hipped roof covered with clay tile. There are 
continuous moulded terra-cotta antifixae detailed with Anthemion motif above a lime­ 
stone, sea scroll decorative band. Other carved limestone trim used extensively 
around the exterior include door and window surrounds, column capitals, keystone 
consoles, lintels and pilasters.

Load-bearing construction consists of a riveted steel framing system. The attic 
space is lighted by eight semi-circular headed copper sheathed dormers with bullseye win­ 

dows. An ornate copper marquee protects the loading platform located at the southeast corner 
of the building where the mail originally entered and left the Post Office.

This building, with its elaborate interior and exterior detailing, was considered 
very grand for Gainesville in 1911. It boasted such refinements as bronze entry doors, 
elevator , steam heat, terrazzo and marble floors, and richly plastered interior cornices 
and ceilings.

The basement area consisted of storage space for mechanical equipment. The entire 
first floor was Post Office space, detailed with marble wainscot and trim, plastered 
walls and cornice in the public areas and 7 foot 6 inch high wood wainscot in the 
workroom. A mezzanine, divided into two areas, is located between the first and 
second stories. The larger area was used for storage space and the smaller functioned 
as a passage with "lookouts" into the Post Office workroom. The second floor was 
entirely devoted to the Federal Court and support facilities. It featured one large 
court room richly trimmed with wood floor, wainscot and pilasters; plastered panelled 
walls; and ceiling with ornamental plaster beams. The remaining area consisted of 
two judges' chambers, a district attorney's office, and the clerk of the court's 
office. The third floor, the least ornamental, housed the U. S. Land Office and 
miscellaneous jury and witness spaces.

The present condition of the interior indicates that superficial alterations 
have occurred during the years. Most original architectural ornamentation, remains 
intact except for the following changes. On the ground floor, several wood stud 
partitions have been added in the work room and public lobby areas, a drop ceiling 
conceals the original cornice, the marble and wood wainscots have been painted, and 
vinyl-asbestos tile covers the marble floor in the work room. On the second floor, 
the wood floor has been covered with vinyl-asbestos tile, and additional restrooms 
have been installed in the former District Attorney's office.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Old U. S. Post Office is architecturally significant because it is one of the 
finest examples of Beaux-Arts Classicism in the State of Florida that has survived 
without significant alterations. The building, designed by federal architect^ James 
Knox Taylor, is elegantly trimmed with carved limestone and moulded granite exterior 
details.l Construction was completed in March. 1911 at a cost of $160,000.2 The 
superintendent of construction was John Young.^ The land on which the post office 
stands was donated to the city in 1903 by B. F. Hampton and J. M. Graham, prominent 
Gainesville citizens of that period.^

The three story building, which was designed to terminate the view on First 
Street south of University Avenue, was elaborately detailed and considered very 
elegant for Gainesville in 1911. It had the finest available mechanical systems of 
that time including steam heat and an elevator.

The building not only served as the Federal Post Office, but also housed the 
Federal Court and support facilities on the second floor, and the U. S. Land Office on 
the third floor. The building became surplus property and was leased to the Alachua 
County Schools for educational purposes on December 22, 1964.

James Knox Taylor, Blueprints of Original Working Drawing executed on 11/25/08, 
photocopy on file at the Florida Division of Archives, History and Records Management, 
Tallahassee, Florida.

2 
Gainesville Sun, December 17, 1911, p. 1.

3Ibid.

4 
Gainesville Sun, July 18, 1954, p. 1.

Alachua County, Florida, Lease Agreement between U. S. Secretary of Health, Educa­ 
tion and Welfare, and the Board of Public Instruction of Alachua County, Florida, Contract 
No. SA-IV-327, December 22, 1964, photocopy on file at the Florida Division of 
Archives, History and Records Management, Tallahassee, Florida.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 
A lot of land one hundred and twenty (120) feet from East to West, by one hundred and 
fifty (150) feet from North to South, fronting on the south end of East Main Street 
and Magnolia Street (as now constituted) and bounded East and West by extensions of 
East Main Street, twenty (20) feet and thirty (30) feet wide respectively, and 
bounded on the South by the continuations of said extensions, which are here brought 
together into a forty (40) foot extension of said East Main Street to Roper Street, and 
being Lot 1 of Graham and Hampton's Subdivision of Lot 3 of the Oak (Continued)____ 
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STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION
THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS: 

NATIONAL__ STATE X__ LOCAL___

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Bublic Law 89-665), I 
hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it hajr been evaluated according to the 
criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

DATE //?C>/9f
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Gainesville Sun. December 17, 1911; July 18, 1954.

lay lor, James Knox. Blueprints of Original Working Drawing Executed on 11/25/08 
Photocopy on file at the Florida Division of Archives, History and Records 
Management, Tallahassee, Florida.
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Hall Plat, as per map thereof attached to the deed from James M. Graham, et al., to 
the United States of America dated March 20, 1903, and recorded in the office of the 
Clerk of the Circuit Court of the County of Alachua, State of Florida, in Deed Book 
58, at page 503 et seq.


